CASE STUDY #1

A Job Search Dilemma
Eric, a second-semester senior, is looking for a job. Anxious about finding work in the worst economy in decades, he sends out scores of resumes for a wide variety of positions. The first call he gets is for a position that doesn't really interest him, but he figures he should be open to every opportunity. He schedules an interview, which he aces. In fact, the recruiter offers Eric the job on the spot. He would like Eric to start as soon as possible.
Should Eric accept the offer? If he does, can he continue to pursue other jobs actively?
Here are some resources that may help:



















CASE STUDY #2
The Case of the Reference Request
By Jim Balassone 
A former employee who was fired due to poor quality work, absences, and lateness related to her drinking problem, informs you that she has applied for a position at another company and has already given your name as a reference. She desperately needs a job (she is a single parent with three children), and she asks you to give her a good recommendation and not mention her drinking, which she assures you is now under control.
She also asks you to say that she voluntarily left the company to address a family medical crisis, and that the company was pleased with her work. You like this person and believe she is a good worker when she is not drinking. You doubt that she really has overcome her drinking problem, however, and you would not recommend your own company hire her back. 
  What do you say to this woman? 
  What do you say to an employer who calls you for a reference? 
  What if the prospective employer was a friend? 
  Suppose the problem was a theft? 
  Suppose she had asked you to be a reference prior to supplying your name to her prospective employer? 
  What values are at stake? Do some of the values conflict with one another?















CASE STUDY #3

Easy on the Wallet or Easy on the Earth:
A Case About Ethics in Sourcing
By Meghan Skarzynski
Fashionforward! is an online auction site where those who have more style than money can bid on designer apparel. The site registers members for $30, who are then allowed to bid on exceptional deals. In an effort to stand out from the crowded field of online bargain sites, Fashionforward! reached out to the local community in search of help marketing their company to college students. 
Part of this effort included hiring a student intern, Carly LeBlanc. At that point, Fashionforward! had no formal marketing strategy for targeting consumers. As someone who grew up in the digital age, LeBlanc knew she had to kick start the company on the Internet. Her marketing knowledge centered on the benefits of viral technologies, especially Facebook and Twitter. 
LeBlanc immediately revamped the Fashionforward! Facebook page to make it more user-friendly--adding quizzes, polls, discussion boards, and photo albums--as well as setting Twitter blasts to go off repeatedly throughout the day. During her three-month internship, LeBlanc quadrupled the Fashionforward! Facebook fan base. Her project helped catapult the company into prominence. In the three months of her internship, Fashionforward! increased the number of items offered on the site threefold.
The CEO noticed LeBlanc's success in social networking and asked her to launch a guerrilla marketing campaign on her own campus to create buzz for Fashionforward! among her peers. The CEO challenged her to register 100 new clients within the week. 
A member of a sorority since her freshman year, LeBlanc decided to use her Greek connections. She appeared at four campus sororities that week. Promising a free Fashionforward! T-shirt with the sorority's name for every membership purchased, LeBlanc registered 300 new members in one night.
Reporting to work the next day, LeBlanc was excited to share with the team the quick acceptance Fashionforward! had received on campus. She believed she had developed an easy and effective marketing strategy that could be replicated at schools all over the country. LeBlanc planned to order different T-shirt designs for different sororities, highlighting the Fashionforward! logo in bold lettering. 
That's when she faced a difficult ethical decision: She could order the shirts from a low-cost company in China or she could order them from a fair-trade company in San Francisco, which provided safe conditions and higher wages for the workers who made the clothing. The fair trade shirts were $28.65,making the grand total for her project $8,595. In contrast, the Chinese T-shirts were $5.50 each, and the company's Web site promised fast and free delivery for a grand total of $1,100. 
LeBlanc remembered from her Venture Capital Finance class that startup companies need to focus on making the most money during the first two years. She also knew that the T-shirts from China would be cheaper so that she could create a more elaborate design with more graphics and color. She realized her school was a "testing campus" for Fashionforward! and that if her marketing module worked, her internship work would spread to other college campuses. She thought of how easy it would be for a factory in China to produce large quantities of shirts to give away for free as a promotion that she could promote on the Facebook page she had worked so hard on. She also wondered if the higher cost of the T-shirts would affect the grade the CEO gave her for the internship.
On the other hand, her International Management class had exposed her to the harsh reality of working conditions in China: low wages, rigorous work schedule, poor safety regulations, and the complete lack of worker's compensation and benefits. When LeBlanc had sailed on the Human Rights and Social Justice Voyage with University of Virginia's Semester at Sea, she saw first-hand a Bulgarian clothing factory's destitute environment. She wasn't sure how the public would react if they knew Passionita had taken advantage of outsourcing cheaper t-shirts rather than supporting a U.S. company during the global recession.
Then LeBlanc weighed her other option of ordering t-shirts from a San Francisco T-shirt company she had already used once when she worked with a community service student organization. While the shirts were more expensive, they were fair-trade, organic, and eco-friendly, all attributes she thought would appeal to students. LeBlanc reasoned students would be more likely to wear a shirt that was fashionable and better quality than one that was made cheaply.
LeBlanc didn't want to disappoint her boss. She knew she was working on a deadline and didn't have time to research the prices of T-shirts at other companies. Even though she could have created a bidding war with local T-shirt companies for the business, she preferred to buy from a company that she could trust. At the same time, the $7,495 she would save if she bought from the Chinese manufacturer was too good not to consider. She knew if she made her boss happy, she'd be promoted and enjoy more independence with her future projects.
LeBlanc wants Fashionforward! to increase its popularity and become a topnotch company among college trendsetters. What should she do and why?
· Should she quit her internship and drop the class?
· Should she ask for an extension on her assignment?
· Should she order the T-shirts from a fair trade company?
· Should she assume the Chinese company doesn't treat its workers fairly?










CASE STUDY #4
Trust during the Dot-com Boom
By Jessica Silliman
Reyna Allen had her pick of jobs upon graduation as a communication major from Santa Clara University. She and her friends were graduating at what seemed like the perfect time-at the height of the dot-com boom. But Reyna's professors had warned her about possible problems in the rose-colored job market. Though the demand for workers far outweighed the supply, thus creating high salaries for those just starting out, many companies, her professors predicted, wouldn't make it in the long term. 
At one particular dot-com upstart in Silicon Valley, Reyna was pursuing an entry-level corporate communications position. But she had the sense during the interview process that the company wasn't going to make it; the product they provided lacked innovation and the company wavered in its organization. Reyna saw them as just another boom-era company that may last awhile before going under. Despite what she thought, the company gave her an attractive job offer and aggressively pursued her once the offer was on the table: over the two-week period when she had to decide whether to take the offer or pass, they routinely sent her flowers and, after one week, upped the original offer. 
After Reyna received the better job offer, she received a call from one of the major venture capitalist firms that was funding the dot-com. This top-tier VC firm said that they were giving the dot-com full funding for the fourth quarter. The company hoped that reassurance from the VC firm would help pull Reyna into the dot-com. This information changed Reyna's mind. She figured that if they were continuing to get funding, then maybe the company could survive past the one-year mark.
Reyna took the job.
But after just a week in the office, she realized the other employees were incompetent. In the interview process Reyna was exposed only to the hiring team and didn't get a chance to meet the other employees. But she quickly saw that they were inefficient and lacked motivation. Nobody ever seemed to be working. 
Three weeks later, nearing the beginning of the fourth quarter, the company came within inches of not getting their next round of funding from venture capitalists. 
Reyna felt betrayed by the venture capitalist firm that gave her initial hope. Though they had told her they would be giving the dot-com full funding, they, in actuality, only gave a small amount for the quarter in which they promised full funding, causing the company to inch closer to bankruptcy. 
Just weeks later, the CEO of the dot-com suddenly moved to New York and the whole company shut down. Reyna was without a job after only two months with the organization. After just getting settled, Reyna had to learn a quick, hard lesson about the dot-com industry. She was back on the job market. 
"In Silicon Valley, people say what they need to say," said Reyna. 
Discussion Questions: 
· Was Reyna treated fairly in the situation? 
· Was the venture capitalist firm ethically wrong by lying about the amount o f funding? 
· Is it Reyna's fault for not looking into the company or is it the company' s fault for misleading Reyna? 
CASE STUDY #5 (SHOULD COLLABORATE WITH #6)
The Case of Bad News
The new CEO of a corporation learns that he has inherited problems with growth and profitability. A four-day workweek and, eventually, layoffs prove necessary. Who is the CEO obligated to inform and when? 
By Gil Amelio 
Responding to a Business Downturn 
George Anderson was just a few months beyond his 40th birthday on the day he became CEO of Astratech Communications International (ACI). What an upper! He was still basking in the glow of his good fortune, eager to try out his skills as the CEO. He hoped to get the chairmanship one day when the company's founder, Mike Marcus, decided to step down. Life was good. 
ACI was a leading supplier of fiber optic transceiver components for the telecommunications industry. It sold to companies like Alcatel, Northern Telecom, and Ericsson, who put ACI's components into the lightwave equipment they manufactured. The company was based in Irvine, Calif., a great place to live, work, and raise a family. 
ACI's annual sales were around $500 million with 2,500 employees in locations in Mexico and Scotland, in addition to its Southern California headquarters. All of ACI's hourly employees in the United States and abroad were represented by the IBEW, a union with a history of good working relationships with management. The Mexican operation was launched to take advantage of lower labor costs and close proximity to headquarters. The Scotland plant gave the company relief from onerous European tariffs. Both offshore facilities enjoyed excellent employee relations. 
After settling into his new position, George busied himself identifying the major issues facing the company. Coming in, he had realized that ACI's growth and profitability were problems, but he wasn't sure if the source was the management team, product development, marketing and sales, or something else. 
After several months, George was clear that it wasn't the people. Sure, there were a few problem areas, and some employees seemed a bit too comfortable. But the main issue was a lack of focus and a general weakness in the business systems required in this fast-paced industry. There was no clear vision of what ACI wanted to be and no acceptable plan on how to get there. What was it that someone said? "If you don't know where you are going, all roads will lead you there." 
To address this weakness, George implemented a task force made up of middle managers from all the various disciplines, as well as the executive team. He chaired the task force because he believed strongly that CEOs shouldn't delegate strategy. 
When it came to business systems, the problem seemed to be a lack of adequate cost accounting. The company didn't know its individual product costs to any reasonable degree of accuracy. To address this challenge, George brought in a new chief financial officer. 
But just as George was beginning to feel optimistic about where ACI was going, he got a phone call from sales to tell him that Alcatel was canceling its backlog. Apparently, Alcatel's customers were slowing their acquisition of new equipment, and Alcatel seized that opportunity to shift all of its business to a French competitor of ACI's that had a reputation for higher product quality. 
George's first call was to the chairman. To his surprise, Mike handled it well, voicing his empathy and support. But clearly, George was expected to take action quickly. He decided that one way of avoiding a layoff was to implement a four-day workweek. That spread the pain evenly among all employees. George called his executive team together to tell them the bad news and to get the necessary action underway. Next, he went to discuss the issue with union leadership. The regional head of the union-also the local steward-was in George's office before lunch with a stern look on his face. "Look, George, you're the new kid on the block, so we don't think this setback was your doing. No one likes to lose part of their paycheck, but your plan treats management the same as the blue-collar workers, so you've got our support. We want to give you a chance to act. If we don't like what you're doing, we'll be back." 
The four-day workweek was implemented. Without being told, the entire management staff knew that they got four day's pay, but they were expected to be there five. After about six weeks, the lower costs began to kick in, and ACI was again holding its head above water...barely.
Then, George's worst fears began to unfold. The lack of demand from Alcatel was now spreading to his other customers and, although they didn't cancel their backlogs, they significantly reduced them. The customers' forecasts reflected the same story. 
Like it or not, George could no longer avoid a layoff. His best calculation was that 900 people would have to go. The remainder would go back on a five-day week. But a lot more details had to be worked out. What projects should be cut? What parts of the organization should be hit the hardest? Who should be protected? 
Discussion Questions 1. When George moved to the four-day workweek scheme, should he have expected his managers to work five days for four days' pay? 
2. Should George tell anyone except his immediate staff about the impending layoff before the details have been worked out? What about the board of directors? The union? The employees? 



CASE STUDY #6 (SHOULD COLLABORATE WITH #5)
The Case of Bad News (Continued)
The Mike Wallace Factor and the Common Good 
George decided to be open about the impending layoff with all the important constituencies even though the implementation details were not worked out. That evening as he left his office for the day, George was surprised to see that a television crew had set up their camera near the main entrance and were talking to employees as they left. 
As soon as the reporter spotted him, the crew raced over and thrust a microphone in his face. "We understand that there are going to be layoffs at this plant. What is your comment? We hear that the plants in Mexico and Scotland are not going to be hit as hard as the Irvine plant. Aren't you just using this layoff as a way to export jobs to lower-wage countries? Don't you owe it to the American workers to let them keep their jobs so long as there are foreign workers to be laid off?" 
George made a few comments that set the matter in perspective. Although still skeptical, the press grudgingly conceded the argument...for the moment. 
When he got to the parking lot, he found that his car had been slashed. The paint job was ruined. As he drove home, he thought, These problems are not my doing. If the managers and workers had paid more attention to quality, they might not have been hit so hard by order cancellations. The layoff was going to happen the next Tuesday, and he scheduled an all-hands meeting for the remaining employees. Did he ever have things to say to them! 
The next six months were the roughest of George's career. But things started to click, the industry was coming back, and the organization had fixed the quality problems. Best of all, the new product, which used technology that was a generation ahead of the competition, was moving along at lightning speed. They would have it to market by his first anniversary. As George reflected on the past year, he realized he had learned a lot. 
Two years later, ACI was the most profitable company in its sector. It felt like a rebirth, for George as well as for the company. 
Discussion Questions 1. Was George's decision to be open about the impending layoff the ethical thing to do? Are there situations in which it is best to try to keep a lid on such information? 
2. The particular jobs cut at ACI were chosen on the basis of the long-range interests of the business and not on the nationality of the work force. As the reporter's questions implied, shouldn't American businesses favor American employees over foreign employees? What do you think George said to the TV reporters? 







CASE STUDY #7
The Case of Nutritional Foods
By Kirk O. Hanson 
What do we do when products go wrong? That question was explored by the Ethics Center's Ethics Roundtable for Executives at a September meeting featuring Greg Steltenpohl, chair of Odwalla Inc., and Kirk O. Hanson, director of Stanford University's Sloan Program at the Graduate School of Business. To facilitate discussion of the issue, Hanson created the following fictitious case. It does not represent a real event, but it does provide a framework for looking at questions of product responsibility. The case is presented in four parts to mimic how such a scenario might evolve in real time. At each break in the case, stop and ask yourself what you would do given the information you have. 
First Warnings 
Fred James, chief executive of Nutritional Foods Inc., a $50 million manufacturer of healthful foods, listened with concern as John Healy, his vice president for production, described reports that had come in during the past hour. 
The reports came from two county health departments, one in Seattle and the other in Southern California. In each case, the health department official reported a possible link between acute food poisoning of a child and an unpasteurized apple product produced by Nutritional Foods and distributed throughout the Western United States. The health departments had not yet ruled out all other possible causes. Additional information was not yet available, and Healy did not have batch numbers for the products in question. 
Nutritional Foods was rapidly becoming the best-known brand of natural or nonpasteurized foods in the Western United States. It made its products in two facilities, one in California's Central Valley and the other in a coastal city of Central California. Fresh fruit and vegetable products were shipped from growing regions throughout the West to these two facilities for processing and canning or bottling. The handling of nonpasteurized products was critical as contamination could occur in picking, transporting, or processing the fresh product. 
Distribution was also critical to the freshness and safety of the company's products. Daily distribution from the company's processing facilities in company-owned refrigerated trucks ensured freshness. 
Unpasteurized products had been popular in the health-food market for many years, but Nutritional Foods was the most successful of several companies seeking to appeal to the mainstream market as well as to the niche consumer. The company's success had led to its rapid growth and the construction of its new processing facility in the Central Valley. 
"OK, John," said James, "what's our response? Do two 'maybes' mean we should do something immediately? We have had an occasional report, perhaps one every couple of months, during the past two years. None of those turned out to be traceable to our product. Do two reports represent anything other than a statistical quirk? Should we be doing anything but waiting for the final reports from the health departments in a couple of days?" 
Concern Deepens 
Healy dispatched company managers to the two counties where initial reports indicated there might be acute food poisonings related to one of the company's unpasteurized products. He was startled a short time later to receive a third and fourth report similar to the first two. 
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Although also not conclusive, the new reports made Healy wonder if something was terribly wrong. Healy immediately dispatched company managers to the two new counties, urging all four to get the batch numbers of the products in question. He also asked for an immediate meeting with James. 
"Now what should we do?" asked Healy. "Should we warn the retailers, asking them to stop selling the product? Should we also warn the public? Such a move could devastate the company's reputation and its stock price at a critical moment. Don't we have an obligation to think long and hard before we take that step? How much certainty must we have and how serious does a problem have to be for us to proceed?" 
Time to Act? 
Healy was deeply troubled when he heard from his managers that health officials in the four counties they visited were virtually certain Nutritional Foods' product was indeed involved in the food poisonings. All the batch numbers, however, were not available. The two cases where company managers could get batch numbers were from a single day's production. 
Healy was further troubled that three additional reports of possible food poisonings had come in by the end of the workday, though two were relayed by newspaper reporters. Each was checking claims by consumers that one of Nutritional Foods' products had made them sick. One of the reports involved a different company's products. 
Healy also heard late in the afternoon from one of his children who had read in an Internet nutritional chat room that Nutritional Foods had a poisoning problem. Had the time come, Healy wondered, for more dramatic action? If so, what action should he take? 
Crisis 
At 7 p.m., Nutritional Foods announced publicly and through its retail network that it was pulling all batches of the unpasteurized product associated with all but one of the alleged poisoning incidents. Once the news hit the wire services, 50 more calls cascaded into company headquarters late that night and early the next morning. Most were from consumers alleging they, too, had been poisoned by the company's products. Five more were reports from health professionals who stated they were treating possible poisonings. 
At 9 a.m. the next morning, James convened a meeting of his Crisis Action Committee, an ad hoc group of managers that had been formed a few months earlier for just such a crisis. "Let me put several questions before the group," said James. "Are we doing enough by conducting a recall for the specific product in question, publicly asking consumers to return all unused products to their local retailer, and asking retailers to stop selling and return all of their supply to us? The press has done a pretty good job getting the word out. It's on the front page of perhaps 80 percent of the daily newspapers in our distribution area this morning. 
"Should we do more to notify customers? Should we consider pulling all our products? The calls this morning allege adverse reactions from many different products. 
"And what should be our strategy toward those who have been made sick by our product? If we show concern, isn't there a risk we will look like we are admitting liability? Finally, what should we do about the sickest of those affected? Two children are reported this morning to be in critical condition." 
If you were Fred James, what action would you take? 
Case Study #8

The Case of the Performance Appraisal
Frank became chief financial officer and a member of the Executive Committee of a medium-sized and moderately successful family-owned contracting business six months ago. The first nonfamily member to hold such a position and to be included in the Executive Committee, he took the job despite a lunch-time remark by the company's CEO that some members of the family were concerned about Frank's "fit with the company culture." But the CEO (who is married to the daughter of the founder of the company) said he was willing to "take a chance" on Frank. 
Soon after Frank started, the company decided for the first time to "right-size" (a euphemism for downsize) to respond to rapid changes in its business. Frank, who had been through this before when he was a senior manager in his previous company, agreed this was good for the long-term health of the 20-year-old company. He decided not to worry that family members seemed more concerned about their own short-term financial interests. 
Besides, the CEO was relying on Frank to help him determine how to downsize in an ethical manner; the CEO said he trusted Frank more on this than he did the head of his personnel department, who had "been around a little too long." 
On Frank's recommendation, the company decided to make its lay-off decisions based on the annual performance appraisal scores of the employees. Each department manager would submit a list of employees ranked by the average score of their last three appraisals. 
If the employee had been with the company less than three years, if the score for two employees was identical, or if there was some extraordinary circumstance, the manager would note it and make a decision about where to rank the person. At some point, Frank and the Executive Committee would draw a line, and those below the line would be laid off. 
As Frank was reviewing the evaluations, he was puzzled to find three departments in which the employee at the bottom of the list had "N/A" where the evaluation score should have been written. When he asked the managers to explain, they told him these employees had been with the company almost since the beginning. When performance appraisals had been instituted six years earlier, the CEO agreed to the longtime employees' request that they keep receiving informal evaluations "as they always had." 
The managers told Frank they'd questioned this decision, and the CEO had told them it wasn't their problem. 
When Frank raised this issue with the CEO, he responded, "Oh, I know. I haven't really evaluated them in a long time, but it's time for them to retire anyway. They just aren't performing the way they used to. The company's been very good to them. They've got plenty of retirement stored away, not to mention the severance you've convinced me to offer. They're making pretty good money, so cutting them should let us lower the line a little and save jobs for some of the younger people--you know, young kids with families just starting out. And don't worry about a lawsuit. No way they'd do that." 
"Do they know they're not performing well?" Frank asked. 
"I don't know," the CEO responded. "They should. Everybody else in the company does." 
Case Study #8

As they walked to the door, the CEO put his arm around Frank's shoulder. "By the way," he said, "you should know that you've won over the Executive Committee. They think you are a terrific fit with this company. I'm glad you talked with me today about these three employees. You got it right: This is a company that cares for its employees--as long as it can and as long as they're producing. Always has, always will." 
Frank left the CEO's office with the vague feeling that he had some moral choices to make. 
Does he have an ethical dilemma? What's the right thing to do? If he disagrees with the CEO, how does he protect his own career and the interests of his own family? What do you think? 
This case was written by Thomas Shanks, S.J., Executive Director of the Markkula Center for Applied Ethics.
Summer 1997

Case Study #9

How Much Should Community Values Influence Land-Use Decisions?
With unemployment at an all-time high and 50 percent of the downtown shops vacant, Tony Pell, mayor of Weldon, had been working with a regional business-development agency to revitalize what most locals called “the dead downtown.” So when a restaurant chain inquired about opening at the location of a closed steak house, the good news spread fast.
But as soon as identity of the restaurant was revealed, the celebration ended. “Why would be want to welcome ‘Cahoots’ to our town?” asked the president of the Chamber of Commerce. “I don’t want to say no to any new business, but a restaurant that looks and feels more like a Las Vegas casino is not what we want in our town.”
Brian Petrillo, regional vice president for the chain, came to the city council meeting when the item was first agendized to calm the critics and promote the project. ‘”The demographics for our restaurant are perfect for a town of 50,000,’ he explained. “Two Cahoots have opened recently in the region, and the synergy is really going to be to your advantage.”
Although few at the council meeting had actually visited the chain, many had seen television ads for the two new locations and were quick to criticize its “tawdry” bar and dining room. “Our interior décor reflects our philosophy – folks should have fun with their dining experience. We believe our theme draws customers but our food keeps them coming back,” explained Petrillo.
Michelle Kennedy, chair of the city planning commission, was one of many who came up to the podium to speak. “I was shocked when our family entered the restaurant while on a recent vacation. The young waitresses were in scanty costumes that made them look and act more like bar wenches than meal servers. The music was loud, and there was a large stage in the middle of the dining room, so we couldn’t avoid watching the ‘dancing.’ We couldn’t get out of there fast enough.”
Kirk McGuire, owner of several vacant properties downtown said a new restaurant would be a boon and would draw customers as well as other businesses. Several other business owners agreed. “That building that been vacant for five years—it’s past time to turn it into a chain like Cahoots. Besides, if we say no they’ll take their restaurant to a business-friendly town down the road.”
“We need to make sure that all parties get the facts and make sure the city council makes its decision based on good land-use planning rather than relying on emotion and hearsay,” cautioned the mayor. “ So I am recommending a subcommittee of downtown property owners and retailers who will meet with the city manager, city planner, and police chief. The applicant will prepare a presentation and the subcommittee will issue a report at a joint meeting of the planning commission and city council. We’ll make sure there will be plenty of time for the public to speak.”
“We all have our own personal preferences,” explained the city manager, “but we cannot let those individual opinions jeopardize the revitalization of our downtown.”
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Discussion questions. Please post your responses in the comment section. 
• If Cahoots meets all the zoning, parking, and other land-use planning requirements, is it fair for the city council to deny their application?
• What weight should council members give the moral values/objections of some in the community versus the support of others?
• Since the chair of the planning commission shared her opinion on the restaurant before an application was filed, should she recuse herself from further discussion and abstain when the vote is taken?
• If the restaurant is approved, what could be done to repair the rift in the community?
• Do you believe this controversy is likely to have an impact on other companies seeking to relocate to downtown? Why or why not





























Case Study #10

The Big Q
  
The Dealer in the Next Room
Isaac moved off campus his sophomore year into an apartment with his friend Jason. Isaac and Jason met in their dorm during freshman year. Isaac always thought Jason seemed like a really cool guy until he discovered that Jason was into cocaine. Not only was Jason a user; he also distributed cocaine to others on campus. Isaac doesn’t want to rat Jason out because they’re friends, but Isaac doesn’t want to run the risk of being kicked out of his apartment, or worse, going to jail.
Should Isaac confront Jason and tell him that he knows he has been using and selling cocaine? Should Isaac tell a school counselor? the police?
 Here are some resources you may find useful:




Case Study #11

I Want to Remain a Virgin

Katherine entered college with a very high standard for herself regarding sex. She is proud of her choice to remain a virgin until marriage. Now she has met the most amazing guy during the fall term of her freshman year. Max, her boyfriend, believes physical affection and even sex are important ways of showing how much two people care for each other. He has pressed Katherine to express their growing romance sexually, but so far she has said no.
Should Katherine revise her beliefs about sex because someone she respects and wants to have a deep relationship with believes differently? His views are probably the mainstream views among their friends, she realizes.
Should Max keep pressing her for sex? Is his bringing it up often a legitimate part of his wanting to express his love for her? Or do his frequent suggestions show a lack of respect for her beliefs?

Case Study #12


Facebook Gossip or Cyberbullying?

Paige, a college freshman, needed to put the finishing touches on a poli sci paper that was due at 11. After her 9 a.m. class, she returned to her room in the residence hall to check the footnotes, but when she unlocked the door, her roommate Cheyenne was in bed with the comforter pulled up above her head.
Paige flicked on the light. It wasn't her problem that Cheyenne was such a party girl. She hadn't come home the night before, and that was hardly the first time. She decided to ignore Cheyenne and opened her laptop to begin her work. But when she started typing, Cheyenne growled at her to go somewhere else.
Paige had told some friends to come by her room before class, and now she had to let them know she wouldn't be there. On her way out of the residence hall, she posted a new status to her Facebook: "Cheyenne (AKA the skank) is sleeping it off in the room. I'll be in the library."
By the time she reopened her laptop, her friend Ivy had commented on her status: "That girl is going to be pregnant before midterms." And Leanne followed with lol.
Paige was astonished when she got back from dinner that night to be approached by Tara, the Resident Fellow on her floor. Tara said she wanted to talk with Paige about cyberbullying Cheyenne.
Do you think Paige was engaged in cyberbullying? If so, do you think the university should get involved in the issue?
 
Some resources you may find useful:
A Framework for Ethical Decision Making 
 Destructive Bullying 
Facebook Crimes on Rise


Case Study #13


Living Situations

 With his acceptance to his first-choice school, a medium-sized private university far from his hometown, Mo gets a package of information about his options for dorm living. He’s heard a lot about the various Residential Learning Communities on campus, each of which focuses on a different theme. As an African American, Mo is interested in exploring his racial and cultural identity, so he’s drawn to the African American–themed dorm, United. But then he wonders whether living in United will limit his interactions with students from other communities. He doesn’t want to be defined entirely by being African American, but he also doesn’t want to feel isolated in a dorm where there may be no other African American students.
Should Mo choose the United dorm knowing it may allow him the best chance to explore his ethnic identity, or should he opt for another residence hall where the dorm’s theme may attract a wider variety of students?
Some resources you may find useful:
A Framework for Ethical Decision Making 
The Impact of Diversity on College Students
Why Does Diversity Matter in College Anyways?



Case Study #14


Handling Council Critics: Is The Customer Always Right?
As a four-term mayor of the city of Brookstone, Paul Mackey had done his best to manage the city’s budget over the years. Despite his efforts, he still found himself in the midst of an economic crisis. Many neighboring cities were undergoing drastic cutbacks to their programs, and Brookstone was no exception. 
Having proposed several unpopular options that would slash funding to city services, Mackey fielded phone calls every day from angry citizens who demanded a plan that would keep their favorite programs intact. The pressure was mounting upon Mackey to deliver something that would satisfy the public and be supported by the council. His patience was wearing thin. 
A few days prior to the next council meeting, Mackey had a long conversation with Joan Anderson, a vocal critic of his budget plans. That afternoon, Ms. Anderson filed a complaint with the police department saying that she had felt personally threatened by the mayor. “I asked Mr. Mackey how he could in good conscience consider cutting funding to our bookmobile, and he just snapped,” Anderson said. 
The complaint appeared in the local newspaper and led to an interview with the mayor. Mackey denied the allegation, and maintained that he had never shouted at a constituent “in all my years of service as a public official.” 
Because there was no evidence to back up either of their statements, the case was closed. 
However, Anderson remained determined to make her voice heard. She sent an email to the mayor that outlined her own budget plan, and she also invited him to meet for coffee and settle their differences. Mackey responded by writing, “Your comments are like those of a gadfly-you are never happy and you never have a solution but you always have lots of complaints.” 
Outraged by his reply and armed with copies of the email, Anderson filed a complaint with the city clerk and city manager claiming that Mackey had violated Brookstone’s Code of Ethics. Since Brookstone did not have an independent ethics commission to investigate potential violations, it was up to the council members to take action. The city clerk and city manager forwarded the copies of the email to the council members, and Anderson’s complaint was agendized for an upcoming city council meeting. 
At the meeting, Anderson pointed out that Brookstone’s Code of Ethics made it clear that officials had to act at all times with “respect, courtesy, and concern.” She added that the code also said that “officials who violate the Code of Ethics will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including removal from office.”
Emily Lam, the vice-mayor of Brookstone, proposed that the council submit the issue to the ethics subcommittee, which would review the incident. The other council members and the mayor agreed that this was the best course of action. 
Two weeks later, the ethics subcommittee delivered their report at a city council meeting. They recommended that the council issue a formal reprimand, which would amount to a slap on the wrist for Mackey. The mayor recused himself from the vote, and the other council members voted 4-0 in favor of the motion for a reprimand and tried to move on.
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However, Mackey was furious with the resolution. “We’re facing the biggest financial crisis in Brookstone’s history, and instead of dealing with it we’re just wasting our time on these petty complaints,” he said. Embarrassed by his outburst, the other council members were anxious to resolve the infighting and get back to the business of managing the budget shortfall. 
Discussion Questions:
· How should the mayor and the council handle citizen complaints such as the one made by Ms. Anderson? 
· Is Mackey’s email really a violation of the Code of Ethics or is it simply part of the “rough and tumble” world of politics? 
· Is there a difference between a Code of Ethics and a Code of Conduct or Council Protocol? 
· What can the mayor and council do to restore civility in the conduct of council meetings and repair their relationships with each other? 
· What role, if any, does the city manager play in “keeping the peace”?



Case Study #15

Dangerous Curves
Francesca is taking an introductory chemistry class this quarter with a bunch of people from her dorm. Knowing that chemistry is not her strongest subject, she studies regularly. Before the midterm, her friends from the dorm go out partying, but she stays up all night going over the material.
Francesca goes into the exam feeling somewhat confident. She knows the professor will grade on the curve, and she will probably do better than her dormmates, who have hardly cracked the book. During the exam the professor leaves the room temporarily. While he is gone, Francesca notices Nick, a guy from her dorm, sneakily pulling out his IPod and consulting a crib sheet he has downloaded. He then passes the IPod over to Chloe. Both of them notice her watching, and wink at her.
Should Francesca inform the professor of this cheating? Won't her dormmates suspect she was the "snitch"? She has to live with these people for the rest of the year.
 
Here are some resources you might find useful
A Framework for Ethical Decision Making 
Cheating in College is Widespread - But Why?
What Does It Really Mean to Curve Grades?

CASE STUDY #16

Rush
When Bobby first arrived on campus, he didn't know a single person. Making an effort to meet people, Bobby went to a fraternity party where the members tried to convince him to come out for rush the following week. They seemed pretty cool, and Bobby was excited to have met some new guys who seemed to like him already. Bobby has heard all the typical fraternity stereotypes: heavy partiers, skirt chasers, users, etc. He has also heard that fraternities can act as very exclusive clubs, and that brothers only interact with other members. However, Bobby also knows that stereotypes are often wrong.
While Bobby has never been a huge partier, and he really doesn't want to be pigeonholed as a "frat boy," he really does want to find a good setting to get to know his classmates. Should he go out for rush and see what it's like or wait for another opportunity to meet people?
Here are some resources you might find useful:
Going Greek: The Pros and Cons
Hazing Study 
A Framework for Ethical Decision Making 

CASE STUDY #17

Should I Call the EMTs?
It had been a long second week of freshman year. Roommates Sally and Morgan were ready for the weekend. On Friday night, they heard about an upcoming party and decided to check it out. The beer was plentiful, and even though they were underage, Sally and Morgan were welcome to drink as much as they wanted.
As the night progressed, Morgan, who had very little experience with alcohol in high school, started to feel sick, so Sally helped her back to the dorm. When they got to the dorm bathroom, Morgan passed out next to the sink.
Sally wasn't sure what she should do. She had heard that there were EMTs (Emergency Medical Technicians) on campus to help in this situation. But she'd also heard that when you called the EMTs, you got fined and "written up." She didn't want to get in trouble or to make trouble for Morgan, but she thought her friend might be really ill.
Facts about Alcohol Poisoning
Alcohol Medical Emergency Policies at Colleges and Universities 
College Drinking: When Friends Get into Trouble 
A Framework for Ethical Decision Making 

CASE STUDY #18

A Major Decision
Megha was excited to start college. During her summer orientation she started learning about all the possible majors at her university. She decided on history because it was something she was truly passionate about. In high school, she had been so inspired by her American history class that she was now reading books on the founding fathers just for pleasure. When she announces her decision to her parents, she is stunned at their reaction. They insist that she major in engineering.
Megha has been a good all-around student, so she can certainly handle the engineering curriculum, but the subject just isn't something she can see herself pursuing for four years--let alone for an entire career. In her parents' minds, however, engineering is practical and will guarantee her a job when she graduates, while history will not.  Should Megha go against her parents' wishes and declare a history major?
 
Here are some resources that might be useful
College Board Majors and Career Central
Highest Paid Degrees
A Framework for Ethical Decision Making 



CASE STUDY #19

Sexiled

Brad and Wilson are roommates. Brad is an outgoing, free-spirited, notorious "ladies man." Wilson prefers to spend his time in the dorm, reading and doing homework. At first, they got along well, with their personalities complementing each other.  But then Brad started bringing women to the room unannounced. During the day, he'd make some not very subtle comment about wanting to be alone and expect Wilson to split.  Sometimes he brought a date home for a "sleepover," and he seemed not to care if Wilson stayed in the room.  But that made Wilson feel like a voyeur, so he slept on the couch in the lounge.  Once he even missed class because, without his alarm clock, he overslept.
Wilson doesn't want to upset Brad by asking him not to bring women back to the dorm so late and so often, nor does he want their friendship to become awkward or tense.   But he'd also like the use of his own room.  How should he approach this problem with Brad?
Here are some resources that might be useful:

A Framework for Ethical Decision Making
Sexiling 101
7 Tips for a Better Rommate Experience 


CASE STUDY #20

Party!

Starting the first week of Will's freshman year at a large state university, there was always a party going on. There were frat parties, tailgates, theme parties, and dances. Even within Will's dorm, some group was always having a good time--playing poker, watching movies, or just hanging out.
At first, Will enjoyed the social scene and getting to know people; he didn't see a problem with adjusting to the social atmosphere before really getting into the academics. But two months into college, he found himself behind in a couple of classes, and handing in work that he wasn't very proud of. He would promise himself to study, but then get sidetracked when one of his buddies dropped by his room and asked him to go out.
Will had come to college to prepare himself for a career in law, and he knew he needed to perform reasonably well to get into law school. But he also figured that college was supposed to the best time in his life, which it certainly wasn't going to be if all he did was study. What was the right balance? What difference would it make either way?
Some Interesting Facts and Resources
About 29 percent of incoming students chose their colleges based on the reputation of their "social activities."
Chronicle of Higher Education, 2003
Most guides recommend about 2 hours of study a week for each hour in the classroom. Generally this will work out to between 30 and 45 hours. But the National Survey of Student Engagement found that many students try to get by on far less. Of freshmen at four-year residential colleges, only 12 percent spent 26 hours or more preparing for class.
"A" students average 3.1 drinks per week 
"B" students average 4.4 drinks per week 
"C" students averages 5.6 drinks per week 
"D" and "F" students average 9.5 drinks per week The Bacchus Network
A Framework for Ethical Decision Making


CASE STUDY #21

Student Debt and the Importance of College: An Ethics Case
Charlie O'Connor* is finishing the spring quarter of his junior year at Santa Clara University. He dabbled in his academic requirements his freshman and sophomore years. By the time Charlie switched from philosophy, which he loved, to economics, it was the end of junior year and time to buckle down. He knew that completing his economics degree would require a full year of tuition. But given the miserable state of the economy, he thought that an economics degree would afford him many more job prospects in the long run. In any case, he was starting to think of going to law school – in part because he was drawn to a career in public service and in part because he had heard that lawyers can start their first job with a salary well over $100,000. But, before he could pursue that dream, he faced a major obstacle: how to pay for his final year at SCU.
Charlie's financial situation when he was applying to SCU freshman year had been much better than it was now. Charlie had been awarded the Provost Scholarship by SCU for his extracurricular involvement and enviable high school GPA. But, by the end of junior year, the pressures and distractions of college life had overwhelmed him and ruined his eligibility for the scholarship. His mother, an engineer and the main breadwinner of the family, had been working when he started college. But, due to the recession, she had been laid off from her firm during the fall of Charlie's junior year. His father was a teacher but had to reduce his hours to half time due to ongoing bouts of cancer; now the medical bills from chemotherapy were piling up fast and even the co-pays were beginning to strain the family finances. His parents also had a mortgage. Charlie had considered taking a year off from school to work at the yoga studio and to save money for his three younger siblings' educational funds. He was also worried about his father and thought that he could stay at home and help take care of the family. 
Charlie knew he was going to pay for his final year of college tuition – more than $37,000 plus living expenses – by himself. He knew that if he continued his job working as a yoga instructor he'd be able to earn just enough money for groceries, rent and his spring break trip to Cabo. In addition to tuition, Charlie needed to take into account the costs of his course load per unit, textbooks needed, LSAT classes and the LSAT exam. Charlie did not qualify for the need-based grants SCU offers for students in emergency financial situations since his mother was now working for a temp agency and his parents' joint income remained too high. He considered applying for the work-study program but learned that such a job would generate at most $2,000 a quarter – nowhere near enough to pay for tuition. Of Charlie's close group of friends, only one had left SCU due to financial troubles—she transferred to a community college since she was not eligible for the Cal Grant Program and did not win an award for an SCU needs-based grant. While he was not ready to say goodbye to the life he had built at SCU, Charlie began to wonder whether his longterm financial health would be better if he chose a less expensive alternative to SCU. The public universities in his home state of Washington were excellent and offered a promising business network for future employment. Charlie knew a state school wouldn't have as much one-on-one attention as he could get at SCU, but, with only one year left, he didn't know if such attention was essential for long-term success.
Finally, Charlie began to consider a student loan and went to SCU's financial aid office. He filled out a FAFSA form, cringed at the thought of asking his strapped parents to co-sign for the loan, and pondered a loan amount that made his head spin—$40,000. Sure, Charlie wanted to be a lawyer and figured his salary as a lawyer could pay down such debt quickly. But he had been reading of the enormous debt – around $150,000 – that people were taking on to go to law school. It seemed like debt piling on debt with no end in sight. He was aware also of the consequences of being delinquent or of defaulting on a loan. He had heard that today only about a third of student borrowers were fully paying back their loans on time. And he had also heard that default rates were creeping up to around 7% of all student borrowers. At the same time, he knew that student loans could not be 
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cancelled out by a bankruptcy, so he would be saddled with this debt until he paid it off. Besides, a bad credit history could make it more difficult for him to find employment after law school. Charlie needed the loan badly but had real doubts about whether he could repay it on time—or even at all. He worried about his family. But he also wanted to finish his final year at Santa Clara. And he knew that having a college diploma offered much better long-term economic prospects than not having one. 
What should Charlie do? 
Should he have switched his major from philosophy to economics? 
Should he take time off from school in order to save money for his siblings' education and to help with his sick father at home? 
Should he switch to a public university? 
Should he take out the loan? Is it responsible for him to do so? 
*This case is fictional. 



CASE STUDY #22

I Can't Get a C
Melissa is a pre-med student at a large university. She prefers taking classes that relate directly to her emphasis. However, Melissa knows that she has to take general education requirements to graduate. She decides to take "An Introduction to Art History," an easy class, to balance out the hard science classes she must take this quarter.
It turns out that Art History has weekly homework assignments--nothing difficult, but Melissa never seems to have time to do them. She reasons that she shouldn't waste her energy on class content that she will never use. Still, the teacher does grade the homework and Melissa cannot afford do poorly in the class because medical schools will care about her GPA. She ends up copying a classmate's homework on a weekly basis. Does Melissa really need to spend time on this gen-ed when she has more important classes to worry about?
Here are some resources that may help:
Cheating in Academic Institutions: A Decade of Research
Fundamental Values Project--Center for Academic Integrity
A Framework for Ethical Decision Making


CASE STUDY #23

Group Project
Kyle, Mia, Raymond, and Jasmine have been friends since they started college as communication majors three years ago. This semester, they're all taking the quantitative research methods class, which requires a group project instead of a final exam. The four of them decide to work together on the project, which includes designing and carrying out a survey, and writing a report on their findings.
Problems crop up pretty quickly. Mia is also taking a TV production class at the same time, which is enormously time consuming. She misses the meeting where the group finalizes the wording of the survey and divvies up the responsibilities for administering it. When she learns what her group has assigned her, she tells them right away that there's no way she can complete so many surveys by the deadline because of all the work she has for TV production. Instead, she offers to take on more of the writing when the time comes to do the report.
Although the others aren't thrilled with this arrangement, they cover part of her assigned surveys so that they can stay on schedule. Mia makes good on her promise to do extra writing for the final report, but she's really pressed for time, and the rest of the team is very unhappy with the quality of her work. Should they hand the report in as is or rewrite it? If they rewrite it, should they tell the professor that Mia did not do her share?
Here are some resources:

CASE STUDY #24

At 15, Pablo Sanchez is already enmeshed in the juvenile justice system. Now he is also becoming immersed in the county mental health system.
Pablo is a member of a large extended family in a medium-sized city in California's Central Valley. Crossing the Arizona/Mexico border on foot, Pablo's mother immigrated illegally to the United States from her small Mexican village, along with her four children, when Pablo was ten years old. She was primarily looking for a better life for her children and for herself. The trip itself was arduous, and Pablo and his siblings don't often talk about the physical exhaustion, thirst, and intense fear that characterized that journey. Pablo's father, who was in prison in Mexico at the time, remained there until he was killed a year later. (Since the family does not have documentation and therefore lives illegally in the United States, neither Pablo nor his mother or siblings were able to travel back to Mexico for the father's funeral.) Pablo's mother works as a maid in a local motel and struggles to put food on the table for her family. Pablo has three siblings: an older sister, now 18, and twin younger brothers, age 8. Pablo's sister, who works sporadically in a fruit-packing plant, is studying at night for her high school GED.
After coming to the U.S., Pablo and his siblings quickly became bilingual but speak with accents. Their mother, however, continues to speak only a few words in English and prefers to communicate in Spanish, something that embarrasses and often irritates Pablo.
At age 11, when Pablo entered middle school (and shortly after the death of his father in Mexico), his mother and older sister noticed a marked increase in his general anger level and emotional distancing from the rest of the family. He began having trouble sleeping and concentrating in school, and his class conduct grew increasingly disruptive. His grades dropped, and he began drifting away from his friends. After speaking with several of her close friends and older relatives, Pablo's mother attributed his behavior to "nervios"—fear, anxiety, and anger brought on by stressful life circumstances. She hoped that the symptoms would ease with time and prayer. In addition, Pablo's mother sought help from a local Mexican herbalist who prescribes a variety of calming herbal remedies for Pablo's behavioral problems.
Shortly after Pablo turned 14, in the ninth grade, he became connected to a gang active at his large high school. He began to experiment with alcohol and marijuana, soon progressing to cocaine and methamphetamines. On several occasions he was suspended from school for days at a time. The school counselor repeatedly tried to reach Pablo's mother to discuss his situation with her, but Pablo's mother was usually at work when the counselor called and had a great deal of difficulty navigating the school's phone tree and answering system in order to return the calls in the evening. Eventually the counselor sent home written communication, in English, which Pablo's sister attempted to translate for her mother.
Pablo's mother grew increasingly worried about her son. At first she addressed the problem by insisting that he stay home in the afternoons and care for his younger brothers (while she was at work), since he was the closest thing to a "father" they had; but Pablo began instead to take his siblings with him to meet his friends, which upset his mother even further. One day Pablo came home with a tattoo on his hand identifying him as a member of his gang. His mother, beside herself with worry and anger, insisted that he stop seeing his new friends altogether. Pablo laughed at her, mocked her (in English), and even made a threatening gesture and offered to "show her" who was "the real leader" of the family. He spent that night at a friend's house; the next day when he returned home, his mother was relieved and gratified to have him back. These patterns continued for several months, at times escalating as Pablo spent more and more time with his new friends. On several occasions he landed in juvenile hall for petty drug and other offenses. 
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During Pablo's most recent encounter with the juvenile authorities, Pablo met a county social worker who took an interest in him. Suspecting that his history of poor concentration, irritability, and oppositional conduct might mask deeper issues, she referred Pablo to a county-supported therapy program for juvenile offenders. As part of his probation agreement, Pablo was ordered to make weekly visits to a therapist at the county-affiliated mental health clinic.
With some difficulty, Pablo's mother rearranged her work schedule so that she could accompany Pablo to his first meeting at the clinic. When they arrived at the reception area, the somewhat harried receptionist told them rather brusquely to "sit down and wait over there." Pablo, visibly irritated, slumped in the chair next to his nervous mother. Thirty minutes later, a middle-aged white counselor emerged and instructed Pablo and his mother to follow her into a small, dark meeting room down the hallway. There she informed them (in English) of her name and that she had reviewed Pablo's case file from the county. She asked Pablo directly whether he was currently using any drugs, to which Pablo muttered a simple "no." She went on to ask him what drugs he had used in the past, and for how many years. When Pablo's mother offered that she frequently gives Pablo doses of herbal tinctures, the counselor wrote it down furiously, with a hard expression on her face. After about ten minutes, the counselor switched into passable (if imperfect) Spanish, telling Pablo's mother that this was purely a short intake interview, but that she would be able to offer Pablo one hour per week of talk therapy, paid for by the county, and potentially referring Pablo to a psychiatrist if a need for medication arose. She advised his mother immediately to discontinue any herbal treatments. Unsure as to whether or not she fully understood what the counselor was offering, Pablo's mother nevertheless agreed and promised that Pablo would come back to see her again. Pablo himself appeared angry and taciturn.
Pablo did in fact return to the counselor the following week and for several weeks thereafter, in spite of the fact that he resented his probation officer's insistence on it. But he did not develop a sense of rapport or trust with the counselor, and his participation in the sessions was grudging.
After two months of meeting with Pablo, the counselor does not feel that they are making significant progress. Although she agrees with the juvenile social worker that Pablo's anger and concentration issues may be related to deeper, unaddressed issues, the counselor has failed to achieve the level of trust with Pablo that would have allowed her to explore the matter further. Additionally, Pablo's counselor is irritated with the frequent (three to four times per week) phone calls she now receives from Pablo's mother, inquiring about the content of the sessions and about her son's overall progress. The counselor believes that Pablo's mother is inappropriately "enmeshed" with her son, thus fueling his desire to differentiate from his family by connecting with his peers in the gang. She believes that Pablo needs to take responsibility for his own health and well-being. Pablo's mother, supportive of the counseling at first, is growing increasingly opposed to it as the weeks pass by with little improvement in her son's behavior and attitude. She fundamentally does not trust the counselor and wonders if Pablo's growing talk of becoming more "independent" from his family is in fact driven by the counseling sessions themselves.
How could this situation have been handled in a more "culturally competent" manner? 

Reflection by Thomas Plante
Introduction to Culturally Competent Care
Introduction to Culturally Competent Care for Latino Patients 

CASE STUDY #25

Not Hungry
Jaya has always been thin, but recently she has started to look emaciated. Jaya used to meet her roommate, Naomi, and some of their mutual friends for dinner, but lately, she tells Naomi she is "just going to grab something on the way to the library."
Also, Jaya works out like a fiend, running twice a day and doing endless crunches. Naomi has heard that this pattern is common in people with the eating disorder anorexia. She has tried to broach the subject with Jaya, but Jaya angrily denied that she had a problem. Last week, though, Jaya passed out after doing her evening sit-ups. She’s also cold all the time, no matter the temperature in the room. Naomi is truly worried.
What should Naomi do?  Should she talk to someone at the University Health Service?  Should she call Jaya's parents?
Here are some resources that may be helpful:
Symptoms of Eating Disorders: Mayo Clinic
Something Fishy Website on Eating Disorders
A Framework for Thinking Ethically

CASE STUDY #26

Theme Party
Michelle is looking through Facebook after class and notices that her good friend Anthony has a new album uploaded on his profile entitled “FOBs R Us.” Michelle looks through the photos and video clips and sees that both white students and students of color are depicting stereotypes of immigrants from Asia. There are people speaking in fake accents, wearing pointed farmer’s hats and ethnic garb, bowing to each other, posing in mock martial arts positions, and carrying around chopsticks in their pockets.
Michelle knows that most of the photos were taken at a “Fresh Off the Boat” party Anthony held the weekend before. Michelle was invited but made up an excuse not to go because the whole idea made her uncomfortable. Now that she sees the photos, she’s even more uncomfortable, but she notices that a lot of her friends have “liked” pictures from the album. Is there something wrong with Michelle’s sense of humor, or is there something wrong with the FOBs R Us?
Here are some resources that might be helpful:
Racist Theme Parties: Freedom of Speech or Freedom to Hate  
Discussion of UCSD "Compton Cookout" by the Foundation for Individual Rights in Education 
A Framework for Ethical Decision Making

CASE STUDY #27

Not Hungry
Jaya has always been thin, but recently she has started to look emaciated. Jaya used to meet her roommate, Naomi, and some of their mutual friends for dinner, but lately, she tells Naomi she is "just going to grab something on the way to the library."
Also, Jaya works out like a fiend, running twice a day and doing endless crunches. Naomi has heard that this pattern is common in people with the eating disorder anorexia. She has tried to broach the subject with Jaya, but Jaya angrily denied that she had a problem. Last week, though, Jaya passed out after doing her evening sit-ups. She’s also cold all the time, no matter the temperature in the room. Naomi is truly worried.
What should Naomi do?  Should she talk to someone at the University Health Service?  Should she call Jaya's parents?
Here are some resources that may be helpful:
Symptoms of Eating Disorders: Mayo Clinic
Something Fishy Website on Eating Disorders
A Framework for Thinking Ethically
 

CASE STUDY #28

Poster Wars: When Is Speech Offensive?
Mary lives in a college dorm and displays a poster on her door with the text of California Proposition 8: “Only marriage between a man and a woman is valid or recognized in California.” She supported the successful “Yes on 8” campaign.  A constitutional challenge to the proposition is now working its way through the courts, and Mary is involved in the effort to prevent the proposition from being declared unconstitutional by the U.S. Supreme Court.
James, her dorm neighbor, finds this poster offensive and demands Mary take it down. He worked to defeat the measure, which he feels is homophobic and discriminatory. To Mary, the poster is an expression of her beliefs and identity, and she does not think she should have to remove it.
What should happen now?
Here are some resources from different perspectives that might help you decide:
Making an Ethical Decision 
Hate Speech on Campus: Pros and Cons 
Student Speech: ACLU 
Foundation for Individual Rights in Education (FIRE) 
Responding to Bigotry and Intergroup Strife on Campus: Anti-Defamation League 



CASE STUDY #29

Savior Siblings: A Case Study Based on My Sister's Keeper
My Sister's Keeper Movie Summary
My Sister's Keeper is the story of Anna Fitzgerald, a "designer baby," who was genetically designed, conceived, and born to be a perfect genetic match for her older sister, Kate, who suffers from a rare childhood leukemia. At birth, Anna donates umbilical cord blood to Kate, but as Anna grows up she donates more blood, marrow, and stem cells to her sister to keep her alive. When Anna is 13, her sister enters renal failure and her parents expect Anna to donate a kidney to her sister. In response, Anna enlists the help of an attorney to sue her parents for the rights to her own body. The story follows the family's struggles as Anna sues for medical emancipation from her parents. 
Selected Movie Scenes: You Should Follow the Scenes/Time Sequences on the DVD
We've selected the following scenes to allow for a class or discussion group to get a good sense of the overall story without watching the whole film.
· Show the first 3:25 minutes of the movie (stop when start scene of family at the dinner table). This scene introduces the Fitzgerald family and shows Anna explaining how she is a designer baby.
· On the DVD, skip to the next scene of Anna meeting with lawyer Campbell Alexander and play the 2:35 minute scene. In this scene, Anna tells the lawyer that she wants to "sue for the rights to her own body."
· Before showing the next scene, explain that the movie now shows scenes from the past when Kate was first diagnosed with acute promyelocytic leukemia as a 2 year old. After Kate did not respond to treatment, the doctor held a meeting with the Fitzgerald family.
· On the DVD, skip to the next scene of the family meeting with the doctor. Show 4:40 minutes of the movie. This clip shows the family meeting with the doctor, a scene in the hospital when the mom finds out Anna is suing for medical emancipation, and a scene of the family at the dinner table when Anna explains why she doesn't want to donate her kidney to Kate.
· On the DVD, fast forward to the scene where the mom and the dad are talking at the fire station, and show the next 3:20 minutes of the movie. This clip shows the mom and dad arguing about what to do about Anna's lawsuit, and a scene of the mom storming into Campbell Alexander's office.
Science Background Talk
· The PowerPoint presentation goes over science topics relevant to the movie:
· 
· Acute promyelocytic leukemia (APL)
· APL Treatment
· "Savior Siblings"
· In vitro fertilization (IVF)
· Pre-implantation Genetic Diagnosis (PGD)
· Risks of donating a kidney
· The PowerPoint takes approximately 10-15 minutes to present.
· 
· PowerPoint Presentation by Kari Kjos
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My Sister's Keeper Discussion Questions
1.  Given what you've just seen, which character are you most sympathetic to? Why?
2. Imagine you are the mother: while Kate is dying, you discover that Anna refuses to give Kate the last possible life-saving treatment. How would you react? How would you try to keep your family together?
3. Do you think it is ethical to design and conceive a child that meets specific genetic requirements?
4. 
· If so, is PGD ethical in all cases? (prevent miscarriages, prevent inheritable genetic diseases, sex selection for social reasons, etc)
· If not, do you believe there should be specific exceptions - such as saving another person's life - or is this just a "slippery slope"?
4. Knowing what you now know about PGD, do you agree with the parent's choice to "design" Anna to save Kate?
5. 
· Is it ethically ok to screen embryos for desired genetic traits, and reject the "undesired" embryos?
5. How does the knowledge that Anna was conceived to save Kate affect Anna's and Kate's perceptions of themselves, and their relationship with each other? For instance, you might consider the following:
6. 
· Will Kate feel guilty knowing that Anna was created to save her life?
· What if Anna can't save Kate? Will Anna face lifelong psychological damage?
· Does Anna feel objectified as a "spare parts baby"? Does Kate feel objectified as a sick person?
6. Do you think the parents went too far in their concern for Kate by making Anna a savior for Kate? When is it too far to save one child by using the body of another? By taking umbilical cord blood? Bone marrow transplants? Kidney donation? After Anna has spoken up in opposition to any further use of her body?
7. Recall the physician in the movie who recommended PGD, an ethically questionable procedure, "off the record." If you were a physician, would you recommend PGD to a couple in a similar situation?


CASE STUDY #30

From Chronic to Critical: A Latino Family Confronts End-of-Life Decisions
Gabriela Rivera is an 80-year-old Puerto Rican immigrant, who lives alone in her rent-controlled apartment in New York City. She has lived in the United States for almost 40 years and speaks some English, albeit somewhat hesitantly. Her primary language is Spanish. Although she is now retired, for years Gabriela worked in a factory where she was exposed to a variety of industrial chemicals now considered toxic. Gabriela's husband died four years ago of a massive heart attack. She has six adult children, three of whom now live out of state. 
Gabriela is a devoted mother, calling her children as often as she can afford and even sending them homemade sweets. She raised her children through their teenage years in the same apartment in which she lives today. She is loath to leave it, although she now pays the rent only with great difficulty and substantial financial help from her children.
Gabriela has long suffered from high blood pressure, which she controls with medication. She also has type-2 diabetes. When she was originally diagnosed with diabetes, she met once with a nurse who advised her on diet, exercise, and weight control, but Gabriela has found it difficult to adapt her traditional tastes in food and her lifestyle to the recommendations the nurse offered. Subsequently, Gabriela's doctor prescribed medication to help keep her diabetes under control. She tries to take her medication whenever she can remember and when she can afford it. Recently, tests have revealed that her kidney function has been declining.
Gabriela's youngest son, Marcos, 49, lives near Gabriela. He speaks fluent Spanish and good (though heavily accented) English. He checks on his mother as frequently as he can. Marcos is a contract construction worker, married with three teenage children. His daughter, Cecilia, 15, spends a great deal of her time at her grandmother Gabriela's apartment, doing homework and helping out with daily chores.
Marcos was also recently diagnosed with diabetes. He learned of his disease at a low-income medical clinic from a doctor who advised him to make major lifestyle changes in order to prevent the worsening of his disease. Marcos is a moderate-to-heavy drinker, but he refuses to cut back on his drinking, since he "can handle it," and it is an important part of his social life. He also has a great fear of needles, and he recoils at the idea of having regular blood tests. He reasons that he will just learn to live with his symptoms, which are still relatively mild. 
Lately, Gabriela has had an increasingly persistent cough and often suffers from headaches, shortness of breath, and generally feeling ill. She has been ignoring these symptoms and writing them off in part to her persistent insomnia.
One afternoon, on her way home from work, Marcos' wife Maria receives a panicked phone call from their daughter, who has shown up after school at Gabriela's apartment only to find her grandmother feeling acutely dizzy and anxious, and having severe difficulty breathing. Maria hangs up and calls 911, calls her husband Marcos, and then races to meet the ambulance at the hospital. 
Gabriela's initial workup reveals a diagnosis of advanced Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD), a lung condition, and bilateral pneumonia. In addition, blood tests show that her diabetes is out of control and that her kidneys are functioning at less than normal capacity. Once Gabriela has been stabilized with oxygen, the attending emergency department physician, Dr. Michael Johnson, speaks (in English) with Marcos, Maria, and Cecilia. Addressing all three of them equally, he informs them that, in addition to the advanced COPD and 
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Pneumonia, Gabriela also apparently is suffering from kidney failure, a complication of her diabetes. He would like to admit her to the hospital for observation and treatment of her pneumonia, and to call a nephrology consult regarding her declining kidney function. They agree and Gabriela is admitted to the ICU, where she is initiated on antibiotics for her pneumonia, and bronchodilators, corticosteroids, and supplementary oxygen for her breathing. Upon admission to the ICU, Gabriela's attending physician there, Dr. Rachel Parker, also speaking English, attempts to discuss with Gabriela the option of a DNR (Do Not Resuscitate) order, but the doctor soon assesses that Gabriela does not have capacity at this time to make such a decision. Dr. Parker then approaches Marcos on the matter, explaining that in patients such as Gabriela, the chance that resuscitation will restore a patient to her previous quality of life is vanishingly small. Marcos, however, vehemently forbids the DNR and insists that it not be mentioned again, especially not in front of Gabriela.
The following morning, the nephrologist consults with Dr. Parker and subsequently the two of them meet with Marcos and Maria. The nephrologist explains the extent of Gabriela's disease and that she is not a good candidate for a kidney transplant, given her other medical problems. Further, at Gabriela's age, long-term dialysis would put a tremendous strain on her body and her quality of life. After allowing this information to sink in, Dr. Parker explains that, even if the pneumonia can be brought under control, Gabriela will need a high level of ongoing care; she will no longer be able to live independently, and it is unlikely that she will be able to manage her oxygen therapy on her own. In sum, Dr. Parker says, the decline in kidney function, along with the COPD, means that Gabriela's long-term situation does not look good.
Dr. Parker then gently raises the possibility of foregoing dialysis, accepting Gabriela's inevitable gradual decline, and instead providing hospice care at home. She attempts to convey to Maria and Marcos that hospice can provide excellent care and support of the patient, as well as a great measure of relief to families as patients approach the end of their lives. Hospice also can arrange for and manage Gabriela's necessary medications and other medical needs. During the conversation, Maria simply looks at the floor. Marcus, however, abruptly and angrily bursts out that his mother is not dying and that God will certainly protect such a saintly woman through this time of trial. He also insists that they are perfectly able to care for her needs as a family and that the doctors have no right to talk about matters such as "hospice" when they should be concerned only with his mother's recovery. He insists that dialysis be initiated immediately and that a kidney transplant be pursued. 
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